
SENATE No. 277

(iommonroealtl) of iflasoacljusetts.
I n  S e n a t e , May 5,1871.

The Committee on Railways, to whom was recommitted the 
“ Bill to authorize the Boston, Barre and Gardner Railroad 
Corporation to extend its railroad, &c.,”  submit the following

R E P O R T :

Notice was given through the newspapers of a public hearing 
at which the testimony was reported phonographically and is 
here submitted :—

The Chairman called the Committee to order at a quarter o f eleven 
o’clock, and stated that the Committee would not open the general question 
of the merits o f  the enterprise, or go over any grounds that had been 
gone over before, but would confine itself mainly, and perhaps exclusively, to 
the matter of the letter purporting to be addressed to the Railway Committee 
by a member o f  the board o f  railroad commissioners which was the princi
pal cause of the recommitment o f  the bill. Mr. Bird  desired to know what 
parties interested were present, by counsel or otherwise.

Mr. W. W . Rice. I appear here not knowing that there will be anything 
for me to do, but to represent the road.

Mr. Ellis W . Morton. I  am here following a notice issued by the Rail
way Committee, that this bill had been recommitted.

Mr. Sanford. Eor whom do you appear, Mr. Morton ?
Mr. Morton. I  appear simply for the town o f  Ashburnham as I  have be

fore, not knowing whether the town has any interest in any inquiries to be 
propounded here this morning or not.

Mr. Bird. Mr. Appleton, we will hear you.



Examination  of Mr . Edward  A ppleton.

Q. (B y  Mr. B ird .) Look at that letter and see i f  it is yours ? 

The letter is as follows :—

C O M M O N W E A LTH  O F M A SSAC H U SE TTS.

Railroad Commissioners’ Office, No. 7 Pemberton Square, 1
Boston, March 9, 1871. j

To the Railroad Committee.
Gentlemen :— Mr. Winchester informs me that you desire to know my 

opinion as to the propriety and expediency o f  the proposed extension o f  the 
Barre and Gardner Railroad from South Gardner to Winchendon.

I  wish to say in the first plaee, that I  adhere to the principles o f  the pro
posed general railroad law, and that if  the Barre and Gardner Company have 
the requisite funds, and remain convinced o f the expediency o f building the 
proposed line, they should be allowed to do so.

But if  they came to me to ask advice as to the expediency o f  building that 
line, I  should most decidedly and earnestly advise against it. The line they 
propose to build is, I understand, over 10 miles long, and in all probability 
will cost at least $>30,000 per mile. It runs through a section o f country 
where there is no village (after leaving Gardner), no water-power, very little 
timber, nothing but a rather barren and desolate country, and the sole object 
to be gained in building it is to save a little distance in reaching Winchen
don, and to have a line entirely under their own control. These reasons do 
not seem to me to justify the great expense they must encounter.

The Vermont and Massachusetts Railroad Company are about to make im
portant improvements in their line in this neighborhood, for the purpose of 
shortening distance and obviating the inconveniences o f reversing the direc
tion o f  trains at Ashburnham Junction. I  have seen all or nearly all the 
plans and profiles o f  the surveys made for this purpose, and I  have some 
knowledge o f  the country. None o f the surveys east o f  Ashburham Junction 
show any improvement over the present line, taking into consideration both 
grade and distance. But from Ashburnham Junction west, the line may be 
shortened three or four miles, without increasing the grade or passing over a 
higher summit than the present line. This route will be from the junction, 
south o f  the reservoir, to Baldwinsville, or further west. This new line will 
then become the main line o f  the road, and I have understood that the Ver
mont and Massachusetts Company, on its completion, would sell o f lease on 
favorable terms the old line to any other road that could profitably use it. 
The Barre and Gardner road could thus acquire the use o f all this old line, 
having some large villages upon it, or o f the part from South Gardner to Ash
burham Junction, as they should desire. I f  they preferred only to take the 
last-named section, they could probably obtain it at a very much smaller ex
pense than they could build their proposed- line for, while it would afford them 
more business. From Ashburnham Junction to Winchendon, where they 
propose to connect with the Monadnock Railroad, they could run over the 
Cheshire road, and i f  there were any difference between the companies as to 
terms, the manner o f settlement is prescribed by law. The increased distance 
they would have to run between Gardner and Winchendon would be more 
than offset by the expense saved in building and the greater business on the 
line. For these reasons, I  should most decidedly advise against building the
line they propose. Yours respectfully,

J  r  E. A ppleton.

Mr. A ppleton. Yes, sir. ..
* Q. D id you understand, Mr. Appleton, that this inquiry was addressed to 

you as a railroad commissioner or an engineer ?
A . As an engineer.



Q. Have you been in the habit, since you have been a railroad commis
sioner, o f signing papers o f this kind for outside parties, not connected with 
your duties as a commissioner ?

A. O f attending to duties o f  this kind ? This was a request that came to 
me from the Committee, .as I  was led to understand, and I  don’t know why 
it was not perfectly proper for me to answer it, as I should answer any re
quest that came to me from the Railway Committee.

Q. I  asked you if  you had been in the habit o f doing business o f  this kind, 
not connected with the duties o f  commissioner, since you have been a member 
of this board ?

A. I have not been in the habit o f doing a great deal o f it. I  have some
times acted as consulting engineer where questions were asked me.

Q, In what cases ? For what roads ?
A. The receivers o f  the Boston, Hartford and Erie road have asked me 

for my opinion as to some parts o f  their road, the condition o f  their road in 
Connecticut and in this State, and I  have answered their questions. I  have 
answered them as an engineer, and not as a railroad commissioner.
, Q. Then this letter is not an official communication. It is a private com
munication ?

A. It was written as an engineer, not as a railroad commissioner. I  
believe I did not sign it as railroad commissioner.

Q. It is dated from your office ; it has the official heading.
A. Yes, sir. The gentleman who came for it came to me in my office, 

and I took the first sheet o f  paper which was handy.
Q. Do you feel at liberty, as railroad commissioner, to give written 

opinions o f this kind in relation to plans o f  charters for roads without con
sulting the boayd ?

A. I should feel at liberty to give my opinion as an engineer without con
sulting the board, for the other members o f our board are not engineers, and 
.could know nothing about such matters.

Q. (By Mr. A d am s .). D o you feel at liberty, Mr. Appleton, to act as 
engineer for any corporation while you are a member o f  the board o f  rail
road commissioners ?

A. No, sir ; not to act as engineer. ,
Q. I  thought you said you had given your opinions as a consulting engineer.
A. I  think I  may be consulted occasionally, but I  am not to be in the 

employ o f a railroad.
Q. You do ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. You think that would be proper, do you ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And do you receive fees for those opinions as consulting engineer ?
A. Sometimes I  have received fees, sir.
Q. And you think it is proper for you to receive fees as consulting engineer 

from railway corporations in this State, you being at the same time a member 
of the board o f  railroad commissioners ? I only want to know what your 
idea of your duties is.



A . I f  my opinion is asked as an engineer on a matter o f  engineering, I 
see no impropriety in my giving it.

Q. And receiving fees ?
A . Yes, sir.
Q. (B y Mr. Sanford.) Did you ever read the act under which you 

were appointed ?
A . Yes, sir. It says I  am not to he in the employ o f a railway company.
Q. It says, “  no person in the employ o f  any railroad corporation *  * 

shall hold either o f  said offices. Didn’t you feel it your duty to resign your 
office as railroad commissioner under that act ?

A . I  did resign an office which I  held as permanent engineer for a cor
poration on that account, but I  did not suppose it would preclude me from 
giving an honest opinion when a company might ask me for it.

Q. But when you are consulted by a railway corporation, you being under 
pay from them, don’t you consider yourself in the employ o f that corporation ?

A . No, sir; I do not.
Q. (B y Mr. Adams.) Then you would feel yourself at liberty to accept 

a fee o f  $10,000 from the Boston and Albany Railroad, as consulting engineer, 
and still hold your office as railroad^commissioner ?

A . No, sir; I should not.
Q. W hy not ?
A. Because that, I  think, would imply something wrong.
Mr. A dams. It would imply something wrong, but in my judgment it 

would imply something no more wrong than the fact o f your receiving a fee 
o f  $5.

Q. (B y  Mr. Sanford )  W hat is the difference between taking a fee of 
$5 and taking a fee o f $10,000 ?

A. I f  I am asked as a consulting engineer whether such a form o f bridge 
is right or whether it is not, I  think it is proper for me to give an opinion, 
but I  should not think it would be proper for me to hold any permanent 
position.

Q . (By Mr. Bird .) That is not the case at all. This is an opinion given 
in relation to the merits o f a matter which was the subject o f investigation by 
the Railway Cojnmittee, and under action by the legislature.— You speak of 
having been consulted as engineer forotherroads or parties. For what parties 
or roads have you been consul ting engineer since you have been commissioner?

A. I had a little to do with the Troy and Greenfield. That came to me 
through a vote o f  the governor’s council. I suppose from that that I was ex
pected to give some advice in regard to it until Mr. Philbrick was appointed. 
After he was appointed, I  had no further connection with the road. That I 
supposed was authorized by a vote o f the council, which was sent to me. - It 
was sent to the board and by the board referred to me.

Q. Sent to the board ?
A . Yes, sir; and by the board, as I  say, referred to me.
Q. (B y Mr. Sanford .) Did you take pay o f  the corporation ?
A . In connection with Mr. Field who was then the engineer o f the Ver

m ont and Massachusetts road, I  consulted as to how some work could be 
done.



Q. Did you take pay for it ?
A. Tea, sir; I  have received some pay for it ; but it was outside o f  the 

work o f the commissioners.
Q. (By Mr. Adams.) Have you ever received fees from the Vermont 

and Massachusetts Railroad for such,services ?
A. That was paid for by the Fitchburg road, but I  understood that they 

were to charge part o f the expense to the Vermont and Massachusetts.
Q. (By Mr. Sanford.) Then, i f  I  understand your case, a matter was 

referred to you by the council ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. It was referred to the board o f  railroad commissioners ?
A. Yes, s ir ; and they referred it to me.
Q, And you took pay from the corporation for doing that work ?
A . I took a fee for acting as consulting engineer with Mr. Field.
Q. (By Mr. Bird .) Do I  understand that the case where you acted with 

Mr. Field and received pay from the Vermont and Massachusetts and the 
Fitchburg Railroads was the case referred to you by a vote o f  the governor 
and council ?

A. It was the case o f  the Troy and Greenfield Railroad.
Q. Was that case referred to you by the governor and council ?
A. Yes, sir.
Mr. Adams. It was referred to the railroad commissioners, as I  under

stand it, as a board, and then Mr. Appleton took pay for his services as a 
railroad commissioner.

Q. (By Mr. B ir d .) So that is the only case in which you have acted as 
consulting engineer.

A. No, s ir ; I have been consulted by the receivers o f  the Boston, Hart
ford and Erie Railroad.

Q. (By Mr. Sanford .) W ho paid you there ?
A. The receivers. I  have also been consulted by the Essex Branch Rail

road Corporation, but I have never been paid anything by them.
Q. I understood you to say, Mr. Appleton, that you thought it was proper 

fbr you to take pay for giving advice in relation to a bridge, for instance, as 
an engineering question ?

A. As an engineering question merely. On temporary questions coming in, 
I do not think there was any impropriety in my giving advice, but I  should 
think it an impropriety for me to accept anything like a permanent position.

Q. Isn’t it your duty as railroad commissioner to pass upon the suffi
ciency o f all railroad bridges in the Commonwealth ?

A. No, I don’t think it is.
Mr. Sanford. The statutes say, “  said commissioners shall have the su

pervision of all railroads in the Commonwealth; shall examine the same; 
and shall keep themselves informed as to their condition, and the manner in 
which they are operated.”  Does not that include the condition o f  their 
bridges ? Might it not be your duty within a week after you had accepted a 
fee for an opinion upon the bridge, or within a month, to pass upon that 
bridge as a commissioner, as to the sufficiency o f  it ?



A . Possibly such a case might occur. There was a case in relation to the 
Boston, Hartford and Erie Railroad where an anonymous communication was 
sent to the board o f  railroad commissioners saying that a certain bridge was 
insecure. The other members o f  the board, o f course, did not feel themselves 
qualified to judge upon that question, so.I went on myself and examined it 
very carefully, and wrote my opinion upon it to the receivers. That I  con
sidered a duty o f  the commissioners. Afterwards the receivers asked me to 
examine a certain bridge in Blackstone, in reference to the time necessary to 
replace it; in reference to whether they ought to replace it immediately with 

• a stone bridge. That I  did not consider was the business o f the commissioners, 
because I  had been over the road before, as commissioner, and had seen the 
bridge sufficiently to know that it was perfectly safe. The other question 
was merely as to the engineering and the proper time o f doing the work. 
Then they have asked me questions,— asked me to examine their road in 
Connecticut, look at the condition o f  it there and see how much there was to 
be done.

Q. (B y  Mr. A dams.) Did you receive pay for that, s ir ; for your opinion 
in relation to the bridge in Blackstone ?

A . Yes, sir.
Q. W ell, then, in what respect, looking at the matter in this way—you 

being the only engineer upon the board, and therefore the sole judge in all 
engineering cases; you feeling yourself at liberty to take fees for your opinions 
on engineering questions for corporations on which you are afterwards to 
judge as railroad commissioner—in what respect, I  ask, do you differ from 
the chief justice o f  the supreme court in receiving, not as chief justice but as 
a lawyer, a fee for a case which might subsequently come before him for deci
sion ?

A . W ell, I  don’t see that this case would come before me for decision.
Q. You know perfectly well, Mr. Appleton, as railroad commissioner, 

that upon the complaint o f any single person in the town o f Blackstone, that 
very bridge which you had approved as an engineer might come before you 
alone, as the single engineer upon the board, for consideration within the 
next month after it was built. You know that, don’t you ?

A . Possibly it might.
Q. Don’t you know it m ight; not “  possibly it might ” but very likely it 

might. You are a candid man, Mr. Appleton. You can answer these ques
tions as clear as the sun at noonday. You may have got yourself in a false 
position, but it is better to own up to it than endeavor to cover it up.

A , Such a case might occur, I  will allow, sir; but I  don’t think it would 
occur in reference to that particular case. You asked me if  that might not 
very probably come.

Q. I  say, might it not very probably come, that that very bridge upon 
which you had given an opinion as an engineer, for a fee, might come before 
you as a commissioner, and as the sole commissioner competent to judge of 
it, for decision ?

A . W ell, sir, I  say as I  said before that I  do not think that particular 
bridge would.



Q. But it might, might it not ?
A. A  similar case might occur ; yes, sir.
Q. And i f  it could, sir, how can you defend your course ? I f  it could in 

any possible case, how can you defend your course as a public officer ? How
ever, I won’t press that. I  only want to call it to your attention.

Q. (By Mr. Sanford.) Are there any other cases in which you have 
been retained, Mr. Appleton, that you have not mentioned ?

A. I  think not, sir.
Q. (By Mr. B ird .) Y ou say in your letter, “  I  have seen all, or nearly 

all, the plans and profiles o f  the surveys made for the line of the Vermont 
and Massachusetts road.”  When did you see these ?

A. I  saw them in January, I  think, sir.
Q. O f this year ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you do that for the Vermont and Massachusetts road ?
A. No, sir ; I  did not.,
Q. For what road ?
A. A  matter o f  curiosity and information.
Q. At whose request ?
A. Nobody’s request.
Q. Where did you see them ?
A. I saw them at my son’s office.
Q. Your son is an engineer on the Vermont and Massachusetts road ?
A. No, sir ; he has been ; he was employed by Mr. Field as his assistant 

on the Troy and Greenfield road. After he had completed the work there, 
when Mr. Field died, he was left in charge o f  it. After he had completed 
the work there, the Vermont and Massachusetts Company employed him to 
make sòme o f these surveys.

Q. That was the time that you saw them ?
A. Yes, sir ; I  saw him when he was making the plans and the profiles. 

Mr. Buggies at one time spoke to me about taking some charge o f  these sur
veys, and I  declined. I  did not think that that was exactly proper, and I 
recommended him to get somebody else.

Q. Did you receive any pay for the examination o f  these profiles made at 
this time ?

A. No, sir.
Q. You only assisted your son ?
A. I didn’t assist him, sir. I  merely looked at what he had done.
Q- (By Mr. Sanford .) Has your son been employed in making surveys 

with reference to this particular application o f  the Boston, Barre and Gard
ner?

A. No, sir.
Q. Neither for nor against it ?
A. No, sir ; not that I  am aware of.
Q- (By Mr. Bird .) Y ou say these same profiles that you saw had rela

tions to this case ?
A, No, sir ; they had reference to the Yermant and Massachusetts road.



Mr. B ird . Exactly. That has been brought up before the Committee in 
connection with this case, and was examined about the time this application 
was made. I supposed it had some connection with this.

Q. (B y  Mr. Sanford.) Hasn’t your son made any surveys, to your 
knowledge, in relation to the line which the Boston, Barre and Gardner 
could or could not build upon ?

A . No, s ir ; he hasn’t made any to my knowledge. I  do not remember 
o f  ever hearing him speak of doing a single thing for them. The surveys he ‘ 
made were for the Vermont and Massachusetts road, and I  felt a good deal 
o f  interest in knowing what they were, because I  felt it was very desirable to 
have that kink at Ashburnham shaken out.

Q. (B y Mr. Barnard .) Mr. Appleton, at whose request was that letter 
written ?

A . It was written at the request o f  Mr. Winchester, as the letter itself 
states.

Q. (B y  Mr. B ird .) When- was this request made ?
A . The day o f  the date o f  the letter.
Q. (B y  Mr. Sanford .) Made at his request ?
A . Yes, sir. I f  you will hear me, first, I  should like to state the circum

stances.
Q. (B y  Mr. Bird .) W ell, we will wait a moment. Had you ever 

known o f  an application coming to any member o f  your board for an opinion 
in relation to any matter before the Railway Committee which was not ad
dressed formally and officially to the board ?

A. I  think there have been communications to members o f our board 
that were not in the shape o f  official documents.
■ Q. Have you ever known an application to be made to any member of 

your board for an opinion upon any matter before the Committee on Rail
ways, that was not made formally and officially by the Commitee to your 
board, or to individual members o f  the board ?

A . I  think members o f the Committee have asked members o f the board, 
and consulted with them.

Q. Talked with them informally in matters o f  common, public interest ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you want me to repeat my question ? You have not answered it. 

I  won’t say upon matters o f  general legislation.
A . W e  have had few communications. A  few cases have been referred 

to us for examination, and those came in the shape o f  official communications, 
I  think, sir.

* Q. (B y  Mr. Sanford .) Whenever we have wanted the opinions of the 
railroad commissioners, haven’t we sent in some way, as the communication 
of the Committee, or a request, formally to the board ?

A . Yes, s ir ; I  believe you have, usually.
Q. (B y  Mr. Adams.) Have you ever known any case where we ever 

sent a person to you for an opinion ?
A . Only this one, sir.
Q. W hat?



A. Only this one.
Q. Well, we didn’t this one.
A. Well, I  have no reason to doubt it. In fact, I  had some reason to 

Suppose it was true.
■ Q. (B y Mr. Bird .) W hat reason had you to suppose it was true ?

A. Well, because Mr. Morton, the counsel on one side, had sent me a 
notice to appear here, that he should like to ask me some questions; and I  was 
here, but he did not come to the matter, and I  went off again. It didn’t seem 
at all improbable to me that when the hearing was over the Committee were 
anxious to put in my opinion, as Mr. Winchester represented to me that he 
had been told to go and get Mr. Appleton’s opinion and bring it here.

Q. Mr. Morton had intimated to you that he might want to call upon you 
at the hearing ?

A. No, sir; the request came from Mr. Winchester.
Mr. Morton. I  will state right here, that I  did not summon Mr. Apple

ton, but I  wrote him a note requesting him to come.
Mr. Bird. But you never intimated to the Committee that you desired 

him to appear before the Committee.
Mr. Morton. I  think I  gave him notice as any other witness.
Mr. Adams. A s a witness ?
Mr. Morton. As a witness.
Mr. Bird. You didn’t call him as a witness ?
Mr. Morton. I  called him the same as other witnesses, but he was not 

examined.
Mr. Bird. Did you put him on to the stand ?
Mr. Morton. No, sir.
Mr. Sanford. Do you think you put in any list o f witnesses with his 

name upon it ?
Mr. Morton. I  eould not swear that T did, sir. I  gave a list o f  witnesses, 

and Mr. Appleton was one o f  them, and I  think his name was on it.
Mr. Sanford. There is no list on file.
Mr. Morton. W ell, that I cannot answer for.
Mr. Appleton. I  had a notice from Mr. Morton, and for that reason it 

seemed to me not at all improbable that Mr. Winchester told me the truth 
about the matter.

Q. (By Mr. Bird .) Did you ever know or ask whether this letter was 
ever laid before the Committee on Railways ?

A. I  never knew or asked anything about it from the time I  wrote it.
Q. (By Mr. A dams.) T o whom did you give that letter ? It was ad

dressed to the Railway Committee; did you send it to them, or give it to any 
member of the Committee ?

A. I left it in the hands o f  Mr. Crafts to give it to Mr. Winchester.
Q. Did he tell you that the Railway Committee told him that he was to 

bring it to them ?
A. He told me that the Railway Committee desired to know my opinion, 

and if I would write it, he would bring it to you.



Q. (By Mr. Bir d .) From that time, did you suppose it was handed to 
us ?

A . Yes, sir ; I  supposed he brought it to the Committee, and that that was 
the end o f  it. I  knew nothing more about it until this matter appeared in 
the newspapers. I  supposed all the time it was in the hands o f the Com
mittee.

Q. (B y Mr. Barnard .) Mr. Appleton, you have a son here, I  under
stand ?

A . Yes, sir.
Q. . W here is his office ?
A . No. 11 Pemberton Square.
Q. It is not in the commissioners’ office ?
A . No, sir ; ours is No. 7.
Q. V ery near that ?
A . Not far off.
Q. (B y Mr. Bird .) In the same entry ?
A . No, sir ; not on the same side o f the square. ■
Q. (B y Mr. A dams.) W as Mr. Winchester to give you any fee for your 

opinion in this case ?
A . No, sir.
Q. Was not ?
A . No, sir.
Q. (B y Mr. Sanford.) W hy didn’t you send the letter to the Railway 

Committee ?
A . I  sent it as I  understand it was to be sent, by Mr. Winchester.
Q. (B y  Mr. A dams.) The letter got into the hands o f Mr. Winchester, 

anyhow ? That is all you know about it, isn’t it ?
A . Yes, sir ; I  knew nothing about it from that time till I  heard of the 

matter in the papers. ■
Q. (B y  Mr. Bird .) Y ou do not claim that any member of the Committee 

ever asked you for it ?
A . No, sir ; except in the way I  had told you.
Q. Or that any member of the Committee ever spoke to you about it ?
A . No, sir ; not personally.
Q. Personally or any other way ?
A . No, sir.
Q , (B y Mr. H o w e .) The law says, “  no person in the employ o f  any rail

road corporation, or owning stock in any railroad corporation, shall hold ” the 
office o f  commissioner. You do not presume that you are in the employ of 
any railroad corporation when you are examining for them and giving them 
a written opinion upon the subject in which they may be interested ?

A . No, sir. I f  I  was employed for a specified time, and at a specified 
salary, I  should think I  was.

Q. In your judgment, then, you were not'in . their employ in examining a 
particular case ?

A . No, sir. I  will say that I never was -more surprised in my life than 
when I  read in the papers the debate in the Senate in which thi#letter was



brought up, and at the charges which were made against me. I think charges 
of the nature o f these were never more undeserved.

Q. What reason had Mr. Winchester to suppose that you would give him 
a favorable opinion ?

A. I think he had conversed with me the morning that I  came here, in 
reply to Mr. Morton’s note.

Q. What reason had Mr. Morton for summoning you here ?
A. I ’m sure I  do not know, sir. I  think I  never had any talk with him 

about it.
Q. Had he been informed in any way what your opinion on the subject 

was ?
A. I told him that morning when I  was here what I have written in the 

letter, but I don’t remember ever having talked with him about it before.
Q. That was after you were summoned ?
A. Yes, sir. As I have stated, sir, I  wrote the letter and left it for Mr. 

Winchester to take, as I  unnerstood he was to take it and bring it to the 
Committee. After that I  never knew nor heard anything about it. I  sup
posed it was in the hands o f  the Committee. I  had nothing more to do with 
it. I saw the charges o f  infamous conduct and malfeasance in office, but not 
being a lawyer I was not sure exactly what malfeasance meant, and I looked 
in the dictionary and found it was “  evil doing; w rong; illegal d eed ; the 
performance o f some injurious act which one had contracted not to do and 
had no right to do.”  Now, if  it is not fight for me to give an opinion at the 
request of the Railway Committee, I  am rather puzzled to know what it is 
right for me to do. That is all I have done; and I  presume that any citizen 
of this Commonwealth has a right to make known his opinion on any matter 
to any member o f  the‘ legislature or to any committee; and I  do not know 
that a citizen loses his rights by accepting fees. Still I  do not think it is 
proper for an official to go round expressing opinions upon special matters. 
That is a thing which I  have very carefully abstained from doing. I  have 
not conversed with any o f  the members o f  the legislature, to my recollection, 
upon any subject o f special legislation, hardly even upon general matters. I  
think I might with some propriety have said more than I  did about the gen
eral railroad law, but as to special legislation, I  have been very careful indeed 
not to say a word to anybody, neither to members o f the legislature nor to 
those who are generally known as men in the lobby. I  have been particularly 
careful to avoid everything o f the kind.

Q■ (By Mr. Sanford .) Now, Mr. Appleton, I  would like to ask you 
this question: You say Mr. Winchester came to you, and you gave him the 
same information that is given in this letter, substantially ?

A. No, sir. I said that I  had had some conversation with him the morning 
that I came up here.

Q- With whom ?
A. With Mr. W inchester; and I  suppose I  said pretty much the same 

that I said in the letter.
Q. “  The morning that you came up here; ”  how came you to come ?
A. Mr.'Morton sent me a notice, requesting me to come.



Q. Had you had any conversation with Mr. Winchester dr Mr. Morton 
before coming ?

A . I  think not with Mr. Morton. It seems to me that one day I  met Mr. 
Winchester at’my son’s office. He was there when I  went in, and showed 
me a profile o f a line that he had had surveyed; but I  do not remember that 
we had any particular conversation about the matter then.

Q. A  profile o f  what line ?
A . A  line which Mr. Winchester had had surveyed from Ashbumham to 

Winchendon.
Q. . W ho surveyed that ?
A . I  don’t know what engineer surveyed it.
Q. You say you met Mr. Winchester at your son’s office; did you have 

any conversation with him about this extension o f  the Boston, Barre and' 
Gardner road ?

A . I  do not think that I  did, sir.
Q. About the matter on which you expressed your opinion in that letter?
A . No, sir. I  think whait conversation we had was more in regard to the 

line which he had had surveyed than anything else, and how it compared 
with the line that my son had surveyed.

Q. Had you expressed to your' son any opinion such as is given in that 
letter ?

A . I  don’t remember that I  have. I  don’t remember whether I have or 
not. He has been pretty busy, and I have not seen him at the office very 
often.

Q. W ell, now, sir, do yod think it is proper for a railroad commissioner 
to give opinions to parties who are interested directly in a hearing before a 
legislative committee ?

A . I  do not know, sir, that the railroad commissioners did give any 
opinions. Mr. Morton summoned the engineer, as I  understand it.

Q. What engineer ?
A . M yself
Q. Then as regards railroads, you hold two capacities : you are railroad 

commissioner and you are engineer for anybody, are you ?
A . I  was engineer before I was railroad commissioner, sir.
Q. And you did not lose that office or any o f its privileges when you 

became railroad commissioner ?
A . Nothing, except the right o f  holding stock or being in the employ of 

a railway.
Q. (B y Mr. Adams.) That is, being their permanent engineer. Yóú 

wouldn’t think it your privilege to accept a position by the year for a railroad 
company, but you would take it by the week or month ?

A . No, sir; I  would hardly do that; but when one particular question 
comes up and I  am asked for information about it,|I think it is proper for me 
to give it. I  think there is a difference.

Mr. A dams. I  know you do, sir, but I  am unfortunate enough not to see 
any difference at all, and I  want to draw your mind out about it.

Q. (B y Mr. Sanford.) One o f  your associates is a lawyer, isn’t he ?
A . Yes, sir.



Q. Do you think it is proper for him to be consulted by railway corpora^ 
tions and to take pay for it while acting as railroad commissioner ?

•A. I think he might give an opinion upon a particular point.
,Q. (By Mr. A dams )  Among other things, you are obliged to report 

upon accidents ; and when notice is sent to you o f  an accident occurring by 
which loss o f life takes place, you have to inquire into it, don’t you ?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you think Mr. C. JF. Adams, Jr., who is one o f  your board, I 

believe, would be authorized in taking a fee from a railway company for his 
opinion upon the facts in a case o f loss o f  life V

A. No, sir; but I  should think he might give an opinion to a railroad 
company as to their charter, or anything o f  that kind.

Q. You do ?
A. Yes, sir.
Mr. Adams. W ell, I  only wanted to know.
Q. (By Mr. Sanford.) In regard to a bridge: supposing a law had 

been passed imposing certain duties in regard to that bridge, do you think he 
might give a legal opinion as to what a corporation might do about it ?

A. Yes, sir.
Mr. Bird. Y ou have given here (referring to the letter), Mr. Appleton, 

very decided opinions, not only upon engineering matters, but upon commer
cial questions, questions o f  traffic, water-power, population, etc., and the 
financial expediency and results o f  this enterprise. D o you consider these 
questions as coming directly within your line o f  profession as engineer ?

Q. Yes, sir. O f late years it has been thought more and more the duty of 
engineers to go into those questions.

Q. Well, have you anything more to say, Mr. Appleton ?
A. No, sir.
Q. (By Mr. Howe.) What do yo mean by the opinion ?— (reading from 

the letter the second paragraph.) It is a question for them to determine, 
purely.

A. Yes, sir. It is my opinion that those who furnish the money are to 
decide where they will put it.

(¿. You adhere to that ?
A. Yes, sir. I might think that they are using their money foolishly, and 

might tell them s o ; but I  think they are the final judges, as they furnish the 
money.

Q. I would like to ask you one other thing, and that is, in the considera
tions which you go into afterwards about the expediency o f  building the road, 
as a railroad expert, whether you take into consideration the whole matter of 
the connections o f these roads, and the effect upon their traffic,— whether 
you take into consideration the fact that this traffic, i f  carried round by Ash- 
burnham, must necessarily pass into the hands o f several roads, and that those 
roads have diverse interests to a considerable extent,— whether you took all 
that into consideration, or whether you gave the opinion simply as one relat
ing to connecting roads, considering the conformation o f  the country, and the 
conveniences o f constructing, without any reference as to the relations o f  the 
roads to each other as extending great distances and controlling these things



in a very different way from what mere local relationship would ? My idea 
is this: there are certain relations with railroads which I call political rela
tions. There is a sort o f  railroad politics. They act as States do. Now, I 
want to know whether, in giving the opinion, you considered the fact in what 
relationship the Vermont and Massachusetts Railroad and all the railroads to 
the north stand to each other, or whether you simply considered the mechani
cal engineering question o f  making the connection ?'

A . Perhaps I did not consider all the relations o f  the road to the north, 
but I  did think o f some o f them. I  was supposing, o f course, that they would 
have the right to enter upon and use the Cheshire road, although I have been 
informed this morning that they would n ot; they would have a right to lease 
a part o f the Vermont and Massachusetts, but they would not have any legal 
right to enter upon the Cheshire; and the rate o f compensation would be a 
matter to be prescribed by law if  they could not agree. I f  they could not 
build this line, I  think they would get more for their money in the other. 
They would get more business upon it. But I think they ought to have a 
connection with Winchendon in some way. That they ought certainly to 
have.

Q. You think they are the best judges themselves ?
A . Yes, s ir ; certainly.
Q. I  want to ask you one question : Mr. Winchester told you the Railway 

Committee wanted this opinion, did he ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did he say how the Railway Committee had expressed that wish ?
A , I  don’t remember precisely what the words were, but I  am very decid

ed that he expressed it in that way.
Q. (B y Mr. Sanford .) Did he say whether it was by vote or by request 

o f  any o f  the members o f  the Committee ?
A. He didn’t say by request o f any o f  the members o f  the Committee, and 

he didn’t mention any body’s name that was on the Railway Committee.
Q. That they had requested your opinion ?
A . Yes, sir.
Q. You understood that it was a request o f  the Railway Committee that 

your opinion should be given ?
A . Yes, sir. And it did not seem to me, sir, under the circumstances I 

have mentioned, at all unlikely that he represented the matter as it was.
Q. Where was Mr. Winchester at that.time, Mr. Appleton ?
A . In the railroad commissioners’ office in Pemberton Square.
Q. Did you put the letter in an envelope directed to the Railway Com

mittee, or leave it open ? _ u
A . I put the letter in an open envelope; and Mr. Winchester left while I 

was writing it, and said that he would call for it. I put it in an open envel
ope marked on the envelope, I  think, “  Por Mr. Winchester.”  He told me 
that he was to bring it to the Committee.

Q. (B y  Mr. Bird .) W hy in an open envelope ?
A . The envelope was marked, “  For Mr. Winchester.”  I f  it had been 

sealed; o f  course he would have opened it then. It was marked merely as an 
indication who was to take it.



Q. (B y Mr. Sanford .) It was directed, then, to Mr. Winchester ?
A. Merely marked on the outside for him because he was to come and 

take it.

Examination  of Mr . Crafts.
Q . (By Mr. Bird .) You are clerk o f  the hoard o f  railroad commis

sioners, Mr. Crafts ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you know the contents o f  this letter ?
A. I did not.
Q. Didn’t read it ?
A. No, sir.
Q. No copy o f  it on your file ?
A. No, sir.
Q. (By Mr. Sanford .). What do you know o f  the letter, Mr. Crafts ?
A. The gentleman whom I  understood was to ask for it, Mr. Winchester, 

came into the office and said that the hearing in the matter o f  the Boston, 
Barre and Gardner road was concluded, so far as putting in the testimony 
was concerned; but the Committee would receive any written statement and 
he wanted Mr. Appleton to make one, or the Committee wanted him to, I  am 
not certain which, though he left the impression upon my mind that the Com
mittee either desired, or had consented to, the putting in o f  a written state
ment by Mr. Appleton, he not having testified orally. Immediately after Mr. 
Winchester came in and spoke.to Mr. Appleton, Mr. Appleton wrote a state
ment, put it in an envelope addressed to Mr. Winchester, and left it on the 
table to be given to him when he came in. I  asked him i f  he was Mr. W in
chester, and he said he was— when he came in— and I gave him the envelope.

Q. Well, Mr. Crafts did I  understand you to say that you were present 
when Mr. Winchester first came in ?

A. When he first came in Mr. Appleton was not present. He made the 
statement to me, and Mr. Appleton came in soon afterwards, and I  told him.

Q. You told Mr. Appleton ?
A. I told Mr. Appleton.
Q. Well, now, what did you say to Mr. Appleton ?
A. I said to Mr. Appleton that the gentleman came in and stated that the 

hearing on the Boston, Barre and Gardner matter was closed so far as oral 
testimony was concerned, but that the Committee would receive a written 
statement from him. I  think those were about the words in which I  expressed 
the matter to Mr. Appleton.

Q. That the Committee would receive a written statement from him ?
A. That was the impression which I  got from the statement o f  Mr. W in

chester. I  supposed it was the correct impression.
Q. You did not understand, then, that the Committee had requested ?
A. I did not understand that it was a request o f  the Committee. Mr. 

Appleton came in and Mr. Winchester came in again immediately afterwards, 
before Mr. Appleton had acted upon the matter, and made another state
ment.



Q. Did yon hear that statement ?
A. W ell, I  heard it, generally. It was substantially what he had said to 

me. He might have expressed it in stronger terms, but I didn’t pay much 
attention to it, it not being a matter in which I  was interested.

Q. Did you understand him to vary the statement which he had made to 
you in communicating it to Mr. Appleton ?

A . N o ; I did not understand that he did. It is possible that he might 
have done so without my noticing it.

Q. You understood him to say to Mr. Appleton that the hearing was 
closed, and that the Committee would receive a statement if  he would write 
one ?

A . Yes, s ir ; I  think ne made that statement. It was something like that. 
I  have stated the impression which I  received; I  do not remember his lan
guage, because it was a matter in which I  was not interested at all, either 
officially or individually, and I  paid no attention to it.

Mr. A ppleton. I  desire to repeat my statement, Mr. Chairman, that I 
wrote the letter because Mr. Winchester came to me*and told me that the 
Committee desired it. Mr. Crafts told me that ajgentleman had been in, 
stating that he would like to get my opinion, but I  should not have written a 
letter merely-in answer to that, i f  the gentleman had not came himself after
wards, and told me that the Committee had requested him. It was upon that 
ground that I wrote it. I  should not have written it otherwise.

Examination  or George C. W inchester.
Q. (B y  Mr. Bird .) Your name is what ?
A . George C.
Q. You have seen the letter which has been referred to ?
A . Yes, s ir ; I  have.
Q. Mr. Appleton says there that you informed him that the Railway 

Committee desired his opinion upon this road ; who were the members of the 
Committee that desired that ?

A . The conversation I  had in relation to it was with Mr. Sanford.
Q. W hat was it ?
A . I  will state the facts. I  will commence at the first interview I  had 

with Mr. Appleton. I  came here this morning—
Q. W hen did the Committee ask you to get that letter for Mr. Appleton ?
A . I  was going on to say that.
Q. Answer that question.
A . I  said Mr. Sanford—
Q. V ery well, state the facts.
A . I was going on to explain, sir.
Mr. Sanford . W ell, state the conversation that yon had with me. An-, 

swer the question.
Mr. B ird . Not the conversation you had with Mr. Appleton, but with 

Mr. Sanford.
A . It was late in the day I  think, sir, when they got through taking the 

testimony o f  the dift'erent witnesses that we had here at the time. Many of, 
our people from Ashburnham had returned home on the train. Mr. Apple



ton who had been in in the morning, was not here. Mr. Reed, surveyor, 
whom I had had up to Ashburnham making some surveys for the Vermont 
and Massachusetts road, had returned and was not to be found. W e exam
ined what witnesses were present, and Mr. Sanford stated that he should 
declare the hearing closed. I  said I  was surprised. I said to Mr. Sanford 
I  hoped not ; there were other important witnesses whom I was very anxious 
to have here; and I  spoke o f Mr. Reed and Mr. Appleton in particular; and 
Mr. Sanford again declared the hearing closed. S a id 'I , “ I  beg you Mr. 
Sanford, to allow me to get a written statement, i f  I  can, for these gentle
men.* Says he, “  Yes, anything yon can get from these gentlemen, I will be 
very glad to have you get.”

Q (By Mr. Bird .) From whom ?
A. I  had spoken of Mr. Appleton and Mr. Reed in particular.
Q. (By Mr. Sanford .) W hen ?
A. At that time.
Q. To me ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. (By Mr. A dams.) Y ou mean that evening that we were closing the 

hearing ?
A. Yes, sir. The people in the room were about going out, and some o f  

the committee were going out:
Q. (By Mr. Bird .) When was that ?

. A. The evening the hearing was closed. I  think the arguments were 
made next morning. I  spoke o f  Mr. Appleton and Mr. Reed, and I remem
ber this fact, too, o f  speaking of a Mr. Proctor who had carried passengers 
from our station. I  gave him some papers at the same time, and he said, 
“  Anything you can get in writing, we would like to have.”

Q. Mr. Sanford stated, “  any facts in regard to the statistics o f  passengers 
there you may put in in writing,”  but nothing was said about Mr. Appleton.

A. I  spoke o f Mr. Appleton.
Q. I  was sitting back o f  Mr. Sanford at the time you said these gentle

men had gone back ; you were particularly anxious, i f  I  remember right, to 
get the statistics o f the number o f  passengers which were brought down from 
Ashburnham o f another person. Mr. Sanford said, “  Put it in writing.”

A. I  spoke o f  Mr. Appleton and Mr. Reed in particular, because those 
were the ones I  felt anxious about. I think there were two or three o f  us 
Ashburnham gentlemen present at the time. One o f  them called my atten
tion to this at the time and remembers it distinctly.

Mr. Towne. I  think my recollection is something like that o f  Mr. Adams. 
I think it was the next day, and I  think I  spoke o f  Mr. Rice. I  think he 
Will recollect what I am about to say, that during his augument he bore, as 
Mr. Winchester thought, somewhat hardly upon Mr. Winchester, and Mr. 
Winchester rose to reply, and was checked by Mr. Sanford with considerable 
sharpness, and the hearing was closed. I  recollect then that Mr. Winchester 
(as I recollect it was at that time ; it might have been the night before ; I 
presume Mr. Rice may recollect, from what I  heard said at any rate), was 
told by Mr. Sanford that he might put in documentary evidence, but that the 
case was closed. Do you remember anything o f  that, Mr. R ice ?

3



Mr. W . W . R ice . On the night before, when the testimony was closed, as 
I  recollect it, Mr. Winchester desired to add the testimony o f  a man that 
drives the wagon from the village to the depot. He had had his engineer 
here, as I recollect, and had examined him.

Q. (B y  Mr. T owne.) Ho you remember the next day, Mr. Rice ?
A . The next day all that took place was this: After I had finished, Mr. 

Winchester arose to reply, saying that his counsel was absent. Mr. Sanford 
checked him, saying that he could not reply, and also stopped me from hand
ing in a bill. Mr. Sanford very properly said that the same rule which 
would apply to one would apply to another.

Mr. A dams. I  remember some o f  the circumstances very distinctly.
Mr. W inchester. Mr. Read went off very impatiently, without letting 

me know anything about, it, and I  was very much disappointed.
Mr. Sanford. It was in the presence o f  the Committee.
Mr. W inchester. W ell, it was like this: people were going out, and 

some o f  the Committee were going out. It was in a disturbed condition, but 
Mr. Sanford sat there and two or three o f  the members o f  the Committee 
were here.

Mr. Sanford . I  don’t propose to go into any issue with regard to the 
veracity o f  the witness, but I will state my recollection o f  the matter. The 
hearing commenced some time before it was closed, as all the parties will 
recollect. It commenced some time in February, before February 8th, and 
was adjourned. The next hearing was March 3d.

Mr. T owne. That is the last I  have on my book.
Mr. Sanford . Then the principal part o f  the testimony was put in with 

reference to the northern end. I recollect perfectly well, as Mr. Adams 
stated, Mr. Winchester wished to put in more facts about travel between- 
Ashburnham station and the junction. I  said he could put it in writing. The 
evidence was closed March 3d. Mr. Dean in close made his argument for cer
tain stockholders, Mr. Morton for Winchester and certain parties interested, 
Mr. R ice made his argument for the petitioners, and Mr. Nelson made his for 
the city o f  Worcester. These arguments occupied substantially the forenoon. 
The arguments were all closed and the hearing was pronounced closed. 
Mr, Winchester then came up and began to argue the case again. I  told 
him the hearing was closed, and told Mr. Rice also. A t neither o f  the hear
ings was any suggestion made that Mr. Appleton was a witness in the case. 
I  never heard his name mentioned, only that Mr. Winchester might put in 
certain statistics for travel and business o f  his own town. I never knew that 
M r. Appleton’s opinion was to be asked or desired by any one.

Q. (B y  Mr. Bir d .) Mr. Winchester, you went to Mr. Appleton, when ?
A . I  met Mr. Appleton in the entry outside, the day the hearing was 

here.
Q. You went to the office for his letter ?
A . Yes, sir.
Q. Did you tell him, when you met him here outside the room, that you 

wanted his opinion ?
A. No, sir, I did not.



Q. When did you tell him that, first ?
A. I  suppose the time I  met him at the office, when I asked him for the 

letter.
Q. Then what did you do with the letter ?
A. Perhaps the Committee will allow me to explain the facts.
Mr. Bird . Answer my question.
A. I  went down to the office—
Q. Stop, Mr. Winchester, stop. Having received the letter, what did you 

' do with it ? Did you send it to the Railway Committee ?
A. I handed to Mr. Towne.
Q. Did you hand it to him with a request that he would hand it to the 

Railway Committee ?
A. I  will state the facts—
Mr. Bird. Answer my question.
Mr. T owne. A s my name has been mentioned here, I  would like him to 

have the fullest opportunity to make the fullest explanation in connection 
with it. So far as I am concerned, I  court the fullest explanation.

Q. (By Mr. B ird to Mr. Winchester.) Did you request Mr. Towne to 
communicate that letter to the Railway Committee ?

A. I called and got the letter, and I  think—
Q. Did you request Mr. Towne to communicate that letter to the Com

mittee ?
A. I  handed him the letter with other papers.
Q. Answer my question, yes or no.
A. I  have, the best I  can. I  gave him the letter with other papers.
Q. Do you decline to answer the question ?
A. No, sir.
Q. Did you request Mr. Towne to hand that letter to the Committee ?
A. I  went—
Q. Do you decline to answer the question ?
A. No, sir, I  don’t—
Q- Did you request Mr. Towne to hand that letter to the Railway Com

mittee ?
A. I  gave Mr. Towne the letter in company with other documents.
Q. Then you didn’t request him to hand the letter to the Railway Com

mittee ?
Mr. Adams. W ill you answer the question.
A . I don’t know that I  did. I handed him the letter.
Q. (By Mr. Bird .) W hat other papers did you hand to Mr. Towne ?
A. I  got a certificate from our stage driver, and I  think there was a plan 

of a survey in Gardner, made there by a Mr. Foss, and there was this letter 
m an envelope addressed to me just as I  received it, and some other small 
plans I think. I  know I  brought the papers down and came to the room. I 
think I asked Mr. Alexander to call one o f  the members out. Mr. Towne 
came out and I  handed him the letter.

Q. (By Mr. Adams.) Y ou never saw the letter again ?
A. No, sir.



Q. (B y Mr. B ird .) And never heard since where it was ?
A. No, sir.
Q. And since then you have never known that anybody had it or where 

it was. . ‘ ,
A . No, sir; I  have not. I  supposed that it was in Mr. Towne’s hands or 

the Committee’s hands.
Q. You don’t know how the letter got to Mr. Collins ?
A . No, s ir ; I  think not.
Q. (B y Mr. A dams.) Y ou never heard or knew anything o f  the destina

tion and use made o f  that letter from the day you received it until the debate 
in the Senate ?

A . No, s ir ; the letter may have been spoken of, but where it was 1 didn’t 
know.

Q, (B y Mr. Sanford .) It was never given back to you ?
A. No, sir.
Q. Haven’t you said that you brought that letter back and gave it to 

me ?
A . I  did say in the Senate house that I  felt quite sure that I brought it 

here and gave it to the Committee, but on reflection I  find I  may have been 
mistaken.

Q. Didn’t you say you gave it to me ?
A . I  think I  said I  showed it to you, but I was mistaken in that particular.

I  think I  said the Committee had seen that letter, that I  was sure I  showed it 
to some one. I  could not tell the exact words; I  spoke right off. On reflec
tion I  found I  was mistaken.

Q. Did you ever see that letter in the hands o f  Mr. Foster o f  Cheshire ?
A . No, sir.
Q. Did you ever know or hear o f  its being in his possession ?
A . No, sir.
Q A ll the papers you gave to Mr. Towne were designed for the use of the 

Committee ?
A . I  think I  made a memorandum.
Q. (B y Mr. A dams.) The question is, what did you understand Mr. 

Towne was to do with the papers,— retain them for his own use or hand them 
to the Committee ?

A. I  supposed when he had leisure he would read them over and do what 
he thought desirable.

Q. Then you supposed that the papers were not for the Committee ?
A . Mr. Towne being a member o f  the Committee, I  thought that would be 

right.
Q. Then did you think that Mr. Towne had a right to use papers for the 

Committee without giving them to me as clerk o f  the Committee ?
Q. I  supposed that letter would be used by the Committee.
Q. Then you gave Mr. Towne a bundle o f  papers, some o f  which were in

tended for his private eye and some for the Committee, and you. did not dis
tinguish in your communication with him which was which ?

A . I  presume I did not. I  handed him the papers and went away.



Q. You had argued your case, hadn’t you ?
A. Yes, sir.

, Q. You didn’t propose to put in a supplementary argument ?
A. I  presume there were a few items I wished to call Mr. Towne’s' atten

tion to. I  supposed he would call the Committee’s attention to them.
Q. Then you proposed to use Mr. Towne as an advocate bn the Committee, 

and Mr. Morton as your public advocate ?
A. No, sir.
Q. (B y Mr. Sanford .) Did you know what Mr. Towne’s opinion was 

with reference to the Boston and Gardner Railroad ?
A. No, sir.

■ Q. You didn’t know whether he was for or against you ?
A . Not at that time. I  thought that at that time all the Committee would 

be against the extension.
Q. (By Mr. A dams.) Then I  understand you to swear that you didn’t 

send for Mr. Towne when you came to the door ?
A. I  should think very likely that I  did.
Q: Now when you drew these points, were they points that you would just 

as soon have delivered to Mr. Bird, if he had come to the' door, as Mr. Towne ?
A. I  had no acquaintance with Mr. Bird. I  would as soon have given 

them to Mr. Sanford.
Q. (By Mr. Bird .) W hen you handed these papers to Mr. Towne, did 

you say they were procured at the request o f Mr. Sanford ?.
A. I  don’t think I  said anything about it.
Q. (By Mr. Sanford .) Did you tell Mr. Appleton that the Committee 

requested his opinion ?
A. I  cannot recollect distinctly what I  told Mr. Appleton. I  am not sure 

of the exact language used.
Q, Did you say that the Committee requested his opinion ?
A. I couldn’t say.
Q. You don’t recollect ?
A. No, s ir ; I  don’t recollect the exact language.
Q . (By Mr. Howe.) Y ou received the letter in an envelope, not sealed ?
A. No, sir; not sealed..
Q. Did you know the contents o f the letter ?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. When you handed the papers to tylr. Towne, did you tell him the con

tents of that letter ?
A. I  don’t think I  did, I  might in conversation some time after. M y im

pression is this, that the morning I  called here I  was in haste. I  think I  sent 
in for some one o f the Committee; that Mr. Towne came, and I gave him the 
packet and I  went away.

Q. (By Mr. A dams.) W ho put these pencil marks on it ?
A. I  don’t know.
Q. (By Mr. Sanford.) . Do you know how the letter got into the hands 

of Senator Collins ?
A. I  don’t know.
Q. W ere you aware that he was to read the letter in the Senate ?



A . No, I  was not.
Q. (B y Mr. A dams.) And you had supposed, up to that time, that it 

had come to the Committee ?
A . yes, sir, I  supposed it had. I  never was more surprised than when I 

was told it had not.
Q. Have you any evidence that will tend to show that the Committee ever 

asked you to get the opinion o f  Mr. Appleton in writing on any subject ?
A. I understood that they did.
Mr. Morton. Mr. Chairman, there is so much confusion about the circum

stances in this matter that I  am almost reluctant to state my recollection of it.
I  do remember that the prominent evidence which Mr. Winchester desired to 
introduce after the hearing had been declared closed, was with reference to 
the amount o f freight from Ashburnham station, and to the number o f pas
sengers. I  am not so positive as to be able to swear that he did mention as 
additional testimony that o f Mr. Appleton, but I do remember this, that you 
said to him, Produce your statements in writing, get a certificate o f  the man 
who carries the passengers about freight. Whether you intended this remark 
to relate to passengers and freight merely or to Mr. Appleton’s testimony, I 
don’t know. I  think the remark was, Put in anything in writing, the hearing 
is closed ; but whether you intended to confine that merely to passengers and 
freight, I  don’t know.

Q. (B y Mr. A dams.) Did you hear any request that Mr. Appleton’s 
opinion should be put into the case.?

A . No, not a request.
Q. The fact that I  want to call your attention to is, that the conversation 

was, the stress o f  it was, in regard to a certain man who carried a fabulous 
number o f passengers to that station, and Mr. Winchester kept insisting that 
that man had gone home and he relied upon him to corroborate him.

A . That was the main thing to be represented in writing. There was a 
running conversation to which I  did not pay close attention. Finally Mr. 
Sanford said, “  Put in anything in writing.”  Whether that was intended to 
apply merely to passengers and freight, I don’t know.

Q. (B y Mr. Sanford .) Did you hear Mr. Appleton’s name mentioned 
in that conversation ?

A . M y impression is that the testimony that Mr. Appleton would have 
given was alluded to by Mr. Winchester, but I  am not sure o f it.

Q. (Mr. B ir d .) But you could have called Mr. Appleton as a witness ?
A. Certainly, sir.
Q. W hy did you not put him on ?
A . The hearing dragged through several days, and when I  came to put in 

my evidence, Mr. Appleton was not able to be here.

Mr. E. H. B a r r e tt joALi.ED.
Q. (B y Mr. B ird). Did you hear Mr. Sanford say or suggest to Mr. 

Winchester that he could put in any statements o f  Mr. Appleton’s ?
A . I  don’t know that Mr. Appleton’s name was particularly mentioned.
Q. (B y Mr. A dams.) Was it mentioned at all ?
A. It was, sir, and also Mr. Field, stating that they were obliged to be



away. I  understood the Committee to say that anything in writing would be 
received. I  supposed it related to the statement of Mr. Appleton and to the 
number o f  passengers.

Q. (B y Mr. Sanford .) Did you hear distinctly any conversation 
between Mr. Winchester and myself?

A. I remember you saying that anything would be received in writing.
Q. What did you hear him say ? Repeat his words.
A. When you declared the hearing closed, he expressed some sorrow and 

said there was valuable testimony he wished to introduce. I  am quite positive 
Mr. Appleton’s name was mentioned, also the matter o f  freight and passen
gers, and I  understood you then that the hearing was closed, but that any 
statements he wished to put in writing would be received. M y impression was 
that that referred both to the statement o f  Mr. Appleton and the other 
matter. I  understood that Mr. Winchester had important evidence in ‘his 
reply, and that anything o f  that character he would submit in writing. One 
thing I recollect was with regard to the number o f passengers.

Q. (By Mr. A dams.) Do you recollect anything beside the number o f 
passengers ?

A. Not in particular. I heard Mr. Winchester afterwards say outside the 
door, that he had the privilege o f submitting anything in writing.

Q. Was it the amount o f  travel and freight that he was to put in writing ?
A. That particular thing was mentioned.
Q. (By Mr. Bir d .) Has any gentleman anything to say in reference to 

this matter ?
Mr. Appleton. I  wish to say something more. Supposing a railroad com

pany should ask my opinion as to whether they should build a tunnel or carry 
a road over a hill, I  should consider it perfectly proper to give my opinion.

Q. (By Mr. A dams.) And take money for it ?
A. Yes, sir; and take money.
Q. And you don’t appear, tó see that it is just as easy for a railway com

pany to bribe you by a single fee as by a standing fee ?
A. I can’t.
Mr. Adams. Then I think you are an entirely improper person to be an 

official o f the State.
Mr. Towns. I  will say a few words about the letter which according to  

the evidence o f  Mr. Winchester, was left in my hands with a packet o f other 
papers. I  wish to say here that I  recollect to have received front Mr. W in
chester a package o f papers, and that the letter o f  Mr. Appleton may or may 
not have been among them; that I carried these papers, I  cannot say how 
many days, and that I never examined or showed them'to any person, and 
was requested one day, by I  think Mr. Porter for them. He asked me i f  I 
had some papers Mr. Winchester had given me. I told him I had, and very 
gladly gave them up, because they filled up my pocket.

MivAdams. Y ou understood when you received them that they were for 
your private use.

Mr. Towne. I  understood that they were for my private use and were 
simply memoranda. M y recollection o f it is that he called me out o f  the 
House. I  Can’t say certainly, but I think it was when the Nahant wharf b ill



was before the House. I  was waiting an opportunity to speak. I  would not 
say, however, that it may not have been from the committee room.

Mr. B ird . You have never seen the letter from that day to this ?
Mr. T o w n e . I  have since seen the letter ; but I  desire here merely to say 

what I  did with the package, and what became o f it. The letters were in a 
long envelope which I  carried in my pocket till it was ragged. I  did not open 
it, and I  never examined the papers to see what they were, and never had occa
sion to use them. I  received them as other men in the legislature áre in the 
h abit o f receiving papers. Every man who has a case will bring you documents 
and expect you to read them. I understood it to be something for my private 
use which I  could make use o f  before the Committee I  did not understand at 
all that they were put in my hands as a member o f the Committee to be given 
to the Committee. I  recollect something about a brief from Mr. Winchester 
which he said he had prepared. I have thought since that I  ought to have 
read the papers. I  understood that I  could use the papers or not as I  saw fit.

Mr. A dams. Do I  understand you to say that at the time Mr. Winchester 
gave you a certain package o f  papers among which may or may not have 
been some for your private use and some for the Committee, with information 
tending to show you that among those papers was a brief which he expected 
you to use personally, and that he said nothing about the papers being used 
publicly before the Committee ?

Mr. T owne. He said nothing about that. It is true that I ha've seen the 
letter, as I  will explain to the Committee hereafter. I wish here merely to 
state the circumstances connected with the package given me by Mr. Win
chester, for the benefit o f those who heard his testimony.

Mr. H ow e , I  don’t understand that any member of this Committee is to 
be cross-examined, but I  wish to say that when the matter was before the 
.Senate Mr. Towne asked me to state, and I  did state to the Senate, that he 
had seen the letter from Mr. Appleton ; it was handed ' to him by Mr. 
Winchester, and he read it and handed it back. •

Mr. B ird (to Mr. Winchester). D id you know that Mr. Porter had access 
to  the letter ?

Mr. W inchester. No, sir.
Mr. B ird . You never knew it until Mr. Towne said so ?
M r. W inchester. N o, sir.
Mr. Adams. Y ou are very certain that you never saw this letter again '/
Mr. W inchester. N o, sir ; I  never saw it.
Mr. B ird . Y ou are positive about it ?
Mr. W inchester. I  have no recollection that I  ever did. I  think I 

asked Mr. Porter to get some information from Mr. Towne about the time the 
matter was coming up in the Senate.

The Chairman  here declared the hearing closed. #

At the request of Mr. Towne, a member of the Committee, the 
following statement, prepared by him, is appended to the pho
nographic report of the testimony.



[Reiterating my public statement respecting the package 
given me by Mr. Winchester, and which I supposed was his 
private property,— which he did not tell me was for the Com
mittee,—which I did not have occasion to examine or make 
any use of,— which may or may not have contained the Apple- 
ton letter, and which I gave up when requested just as I re
ceived it,—I have only farther to say that when subsequently I 
was shown the letter, it was contained in an envelope addressed 
to Mr. Winchester, and I supposed it to be written for him and 
for his use, as evidence'if he chose to use it. My idea was that 
Mr. Appleton having been summoned as a witness, and having 
failed to appear when called, had written out his testimony and 
sent it to Mr. Winchester. I never examined the letter with 
care, and until it was read in the Senate chamber supposed it 
to be addressed, as was the envelope, to Mr. Winchester.]

For the purpose of giving the parties in interest an oppor
tunity to come to a mutually satisfactory arrangement, the 
Committee have incorporated in the bill a section authorizing 
the Boston, Barre & Gardner Railroad Corporation to enter 
upon and run over the Vermont & Massachusetts, and the 
Cheshire Railroads eastwardly, or the Vermont & Massachusetts 
and the Ware River Railroads westwardly ; and therefore report 
the Bill in a new draft.

F. W. BIRD,
ESTES HOWE,
GEORGE M. STEARNS,

Of the Senate.

JOHN E. SANFORD,
J. Q. ADAMS,
W. P. PHILLIPS,
H. J. BARKER,
G. 0. FAIRBANKS,
WM. H. ANDERSON,
LEWIS BARNARD,

Of the House.
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In the Year One Thousand Eight Hundred and Seventy-
One.

AN ACT
To authorize the Boston, Barre and Gardner Railroad 

Corporation to extend its Railroad, to extend the time 
for Locating and Constructing the same, and to change 
the Name o f the Corporation.

B e it enacted by the Senate and House o f  Representa
tives, in General Court assembled, and by the authority o f 
the same, as follow s :—

1 Sect. 1. The Boston, Barre and Gardner Railroad
2 Corporation may, from the terminus o f its present 

• 3 railroad in Gardner, enter upon, run over and use
4 with its own motive power and cars, the railroad of
5 the .Vermont and Massachusetts Railroad Company
6 eastwardly to its junction with the railroad o f the
7 Cheshire Railroad Company in Ashburnham, and
8 thence the railroad o f said last-named company to its
9 junction with the railroad o f the Monadnock Railroad 

10 Company in Winchendon ; or, from said terminus in



11 Gardner, the railroad o f the Vermont and Massachu-
12 setts Railroad Company westwardly to its junction
13 with the railroad o f the W are River Railroad Com-
14 pany in Templeton, and thence the railroad o f said
15 last-named company to its junction with the railroad
16 of the Cheshire Railroad Company, or the Monadnock
17 Railroad Company in W inchendon, upon such terms
18 and conditions as may be agreed between said first-
19 named corporation and said other corporations upon
20 either route respectively.

1 Sect. 2. I f  within sixty days after the passage o f
2 this act, the said corporations cannot agree upon the
3 terms and conditions 'under which the first-named
4 corporation may enter upon, run over and use as
5 aforesaid the railroads o f said other corporations upon
6 either of said routes, then the Boston, Barre and
7 Gardner Railroad Corporation may locate, construct,
8 'maintain and operate a railroad, with one or more
9 tracks, commencing at .the terminus o f its present

10 railroad in the town o f Gardner ; thence running
11 northerly through said town and the town o f W in-
12 chendon to a convenient point in said Winchendon
13 at or near the depot o f the Cheshire Railroad Com-
14 pany ; with all the powers and privileges, and sub-
15 ject to all the duties, liabilities and restrictions set
16 forth in the general laws which now are or hereafter
17 may be in force relating to railroad corporations.

1 Sect. 3. Said corporation may enter with its said
2 railroad upon, unite the same with, and use the rail-
3 roads of the Cheshire Railroad Company, the Ware
4 River Railroad Company, and the Monadnock Rail-



5 road ' Company, or either o f them ; and said last-
6 named corporations may respectively enter with their
7 railroads upon, unite the same with and use the rail-
8 road o f said corporation, subject to the provisions of
9 the general laws.

1 Sect. 4. The place and manner in which said
2 corporation may cross with its said railroad, the rail-
3 roads o f other corporations in the line o f its location,
4 i f  not agreed by said corporation and the corpora-
5 tions respectively whose roads are crossed, shall be
6 determined by the board o f railroad commissioners.
7 Such crossing shall be constructed and maintained at
8 the cost o f said corporation.

1 Sect. 5. The extension of the railroad o f said
2 corporation authorized in this act shall, subject to
3 the condition aforesaid, be located within one year
4 and constructed within two years after the passage
5 of this act. The time for locating and constructing
6 the first and second sections o f its railroad is extended
7 one year, and for locating and constructing the third
8 section thereof three years, beyond the time now
9 allowed by law.

1 Sect. 6. I f  the road o f said corporation is ex-
2 tended under the provisions o f this act, said corpora-
3 tion may increase its capital stock by an amount not
4 exceeding two hundred thousand dollars, in addition
5 to the amount now authorize by law.

1 Sect. 7. Said Boston, Barre and Gardner Rail-
2 r o a d  Corporation shall hereafter be called and known



3 by the name o f  the Worcester, Gardner and W in- 
41 chendon Railroad Company.

1 Sect. 8. This act shall take effect upon its pas-
2 sage.




